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District Court Enters Permanent Injunction Against
Califonsia-Basod Firm and individuals to Prevent
Distribution of Adulterated Dietary Seipplemenis
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‘AtIt:ltcratcd uietan’ suhiplc:itcnta ott’ pose a s;cpiifieatt risk to tile public health,” said Stuart F.
Dcl en’ Assist ant Alt 0mev General for tile Dep:tmhttent of .ltatiee’s CMI Division. “the Depati met;; of
Justice is committed to protecting the liublic from dictan’ suppiomcnis that are nut manufactured in
conformity wit!; comment good mam.ufaeturi,ig practice, as required by law,”

According to the complaint filed by the United States on Jo;ie a, 1014, (1MM manufactured, labeled,
prepared, packed, held and distributed dietan’ supplements from its facility in Gardena, California. As
alleged in the eonttlaittt, itt spections 1w tht Food and Dntg Administrat on (FDA) estal,listted that the
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sscre prepared, packed and iteltt under conditions that do not comply witit ti:e current good
ti;at;ttiottttr:t:g practice rcguatic::s for dictatysupplee;ct;Ls. For exatttple, tittdrtg att inspecliolt in
20t’I, FL).% ei;sen’cd titat dcfendattts failed to maintain, clean and sanitize, at necessaty, eq’aiptoent,
tttettsits acid ,itlter contact surfaces used to o,an;tfaetrtee, package, lahri or helti enmponemtts or tlie:aiy
sup itlc’tni’:tts
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cc:ttp,,:ty’s facilit at;d p mocide a cenifiottion Ut at all nta nttfactudng den ir toes have beets vu rreeled
Alan, the defentlants ntt,se report to FDA tN actions the’,’ have taket: to correct the sleviatiotu. ‘rite,
defe ttebnts are net ahlosseti te resume operations until FDA has me’ it’atwctc’d tltcir fadlity and
operatiotu, and provided ‘srtteo notice to theta

Arcnrding to the complaint, the defendants’ facility was inspected by FDA in 2052 and aum;j. Dttring

thL’ at’ itt iitspectio n, the F ISA obtened significant violations ui tlte Feda ma! Food, Drttg, and Costnetics
Act a ti1 ittqtlentettt i ng regitla tin nS, iiteittding violations that Were Gte saute or ii tudar to those obsen’ed
duritig tile at, t a itia teL’s ion. Follesd ng site 20 t a ittspection, FDA issued a warning letter to NI an Yang
iofom tltiutg dun that tltc’ significant deviations doeutnetsted by FDA during tite’ auto inspection rettdereit
defendants’ dietary sttppl eotett Is adulte mated under tue law. ‘lit e ‘earning letter frotn FDA ra Otto tied
Itat failure to llrtslttlstiv cnrreet sit to deviat iotts, amid prevettt futttre otteR, cost1 d lead Its a ddit iottal

regitlatsiry;tc tush, itseluditsg’.ttt injttnctictn.
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shot ti Isitted at itt>’ time since Feb. t3, aO ta. Defe ndattts (re elton reittlireil to destroy’ all tlictan’
stlpplemL’nts in their possessints, cttstody and/or cotttrol.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
1 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITEI) STATES OF AMERICA, Case No.: CV 14-04231-ODW (P TWx)

P I a intif I,
4 CONSENT DECREE OF

PERMANENT INJUNCTION

GM MANUFACTURING. INC..
6 a corporation, and

MAO L. YANG.
MARY CHEN, and
DAVID YANG, individuals.

Defendants.
9

10 P]aintiti the United Status of America. by its undersigned attorneys, having

11 filed a Complaint For Permanent Injunction (“Complaint”) against GM

12 Manufacturing. Inc.. a corporation. and Mao L. Yang, Mary Chen, and David

13 yang, individuals (collectively “Defendants”), and Deiendants having appeared

14 and having consented to the entry of this Consent Decree of Permanent Injunction

15 (“Decree”) without contest and before any testimony has been taken, and the

16 United States of America having consented to this Decree;

17 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, ANI) DECREED that:

1$ I. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and over all parties

to this action.

20 2. ]‘he complaint states a cause of action against Defendants under the

21 Fedcral Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. 301 et seq. (the “Act”).

22 3. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(a), by introducing and

23 causing to be introdLcced. and delivering and causing to be delivered br

24 introduction, into interstate commerce articles of food (dietary supplements as

25 defined b’ 21 USC. § 32 U tfl) that are adulterated within the meaning of

26 21 U.S.C. § 342(g)( I), in that they have been prepared, packed, and held under

27

2



Cas 2:14-cv-04231-ODW-PJW Document 10 Filed 06/20/14 Page 2 of 15 Page ID #:40

conditions that do not conform to the current good manufacturing practice

2 VtGMP”) regulations tbr dietary supplements set thrth at 21 C.F.R. Part 111.

3 4. Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. 33 1(k). by causing the

4 adulteration, within the meaning of2 I U.S.C. 342(g)( 1), of articles of food

5 (dietary supplements), while such articles are held for sale after shipment of one or

6 more of their components in interstate commerce.

7 5. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants represent to the Court that

S Defendants are not directly or indirectly engaged in manufacturing, preparing,

9 vrocessing, puckin, labeling, holding, and/or distributing any articles of food

10 (dietary supplements). JfDefendants later intend to resume any such operations at

11 1500 W 135th St. Gardcna. California (“the facility”), or any other location,

12 Defendants must tirst notift FDA in writing at least ninety (90) calendar days in

13 athanec of resuming operations and comply with paragraphs 6(A)—(F) of this

14 Decree, This notice shall identify the type(s) of dictary supplements Defendants

15 intend to manufacture, prepare, process, pack, label, hold, and/or distribute, and the

16 location at which Defendants intend to resume operations. Defendants shall not

7 resume operations until FDA has inspected Defendants’ fitcility and operations

18 pursuant to paragraph 6(0), Defendants have paid all costs pursuant to paragraph

19 I 6(H). and Defendants have received wTitten notice from FDA. as required by

20 paragraph 6(1), and then shall resume operations only to the extent authorized in

21 FDA’s written notice.

22 6. Defendants and each and all of their directors, officers, agents.

23 representatives, employees, attorneys, successors, assigns, and any and all persons

24 or entities in active concert or participation with any of•• them, who receive actual

25 notice of this Decree, are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined, under the

26 provisions of2 I U.S.C. § 332(a), and the equitable authority of this Court, from

27 Il directly or indirectly manufacturing, preparing, processing, packing, labeling,

3
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1 holding. and/or clistribudng any dietary supplements, at or from the facility, or at or

2 ftorn any other locations at which Defendants now. or in the future, directly or

3 indirectly manufacture, prepare, process. pack, label, hold, andlor distribute dietary

4 supplements. including in—process materials, ingredients, and components thereof,

unless and until:

6 A. Defendants’ methods. facilities, processes. and controls used to

7 1 manufacture, prepare. process, pack, label, hold, and distribute dietary

8 supplements are established, operated, and administered in compliance with

9 this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations.

to B. Defendants retain, at their expense, an independent person or

II persons (the “Expert”). who is without any personal or financial ties (other

12 than the retention aw’eement) to Defendants or their families, and who, by’

13 reason of background. training, education, or experience, is qualified to

14 inspect the theiiky to determine whether the facility and the n’iethods,

IS processes. and controls that Defendants use to manufhcture, prepare,

16 process. pack. label, hold, and distribute dietary supplements are operated

17 and administered in conformity with cGMP, 21 C.RR. Part Ill. Defendants

18 shall notil5’ the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) in

19 writing of the identity and qualifications of the Expert within five (5)

20 , calendar days of retaining such Expert;

21 C. The Expert performs a comprehensive inspection of the thcility

22 and the methods, processes, and controls that Defendants use to

23 manuthcture. prepare, process, pack, label, hold, and distribute dietary

24 supplements and the labeling for all of Defendants’ dietary supplements to

25 determine whether Defendants arc in compliance with 21 U.S.C.

26 § 312(g)(1), 21 C.F.R. Part 111, and this Decree;

27

4
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1 D. The Expert certifies in writing to FDA that:

2 i. The Expert has inspected the facility’ and the methods.

3 processes. and controls that Defendants use to manufacture, prepare.

4 process, pack. label. hold. and distribute dietary supplements;

5 ii. All cGMP deviations brought to Defendants’ attention by

6 FDA, the Expert, or any other source have been corrected; and

7 iii. The facility, methods. processes. and controls that

8 Defl.mdants use to manufacture, prepare, pocess, pack, label, hold,

9 and distribute dietary supplements are in compliance with this Decree,

LU the Act, and 2) C.F.R. Part Ill. As part of the Expert’s certification,

ii a ftilI and complete dctailed report of the results of the Expert’s

12 inspection shall be provided by the Expert to FDA;

13 E. Defendants report to FDA in writing the actions they have

14 taken to:

15 i. Correct all deviations brought to Defendants’ attention by

16 FDA, the Expert, and/or any other source; and

17 ii. Ensure that the methods and processes used in, and the

18 facility and controls used for. manuthcturing, preparing, processing.

19 packing, labeling, holding, and distributing dietary supplements are

20 operated, and will be continuously administered in conformity with

21 . cGMP, 21 C.F.R. Part lii;

22 F. Defendants recall and destroy, under FDA’s supervision and in

23 accordance with the procedures provided in paragraph 8, all dietary

24 supplements that were manufactured, prepared, processed, packed, labeled,

25 held, and/or distributed prior to the entry o this Decree;

26 G. FDA, as and when it deems necessary to evaluate Defendants’

27 compliance with the terms of this Decree, the Act, and applicable

S
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I regulations, conducts inspections of the facility, including the buildings,

2 equipment, utensils, dietary supplements, labeling, and all relevant records

3 contained therein;

4 H. Defendants have paid all costs of supervision, inspections,

5 I investigations, analyses, examinations, and reviews for FDA’s oversight

6 with respect to paragraph 6. at the rates set forth in paragraph 12; and

7 1. FDA has notified Defendants, in writing, that Defendants

S appear to be in compliance with all the requirements specified in paragraphs

9 6(A)-(F) and (H) of this Decree, the Act, including 21 U.S.C. § 342(g)( I),

10 and all applicable regulations, including 21 C.F.R. Part 111. In no

11 circumstance shall FDA’s silence be construed as a substitute for written

12 noiitication.

13 7. Defendants and each and all of their directors, officers. agents,

14 representatives, employees, attorneys, successors, assigns, and any all persons or

15 entities in active concert or participation with any of them, who have received

16 i actual notice of this Decree, are permanently restrained and enjoined under

17 21 U.S.C. § 332(a) from directly or indirectly doing or causing any act that:

1$ A. Violates the Act. 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(a), by introducing or

19 delivering for introduction into interstate commerce, and/or causing the

20 introduction or delivery for introduction into interstate commerce. of any

21 dietary supplement, within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 321(10, that is

22 adulterated within the meaning of2 I U.S.C. § 342(g)( I);

23 B. \‘iolates the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(k), by causing any dietary

24 supplement within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 32 1(ñ) to become adulterated

25 within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1), while such dietary supplement

26 is held for sale after shipment of one or more of its components in interstate

27 I commerce; and/or

6
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1 C. Results in the ihilure to implement and continuously maintain

2 the requirements of this Decree.

II 8. Within twenty (20) business days of entry of’ this Decree, Defendants

4 shall recall all dietary supplements that they manufactured, prepared, processed,

S packed. labeled, held, and/or distributed at any time after February 13, 20)2.

6 Within fifteen (15) calendar days of entry of this Decree and within ten (10)

7 calendar days after receiving an)’ recalled dietary supplements, Defendants shall,

8 under FDA supervision, destroy all dietary supplements in Defendants’ possession,

9 custody. and/or control because they are adulterated in that they were not

10 nianutacwred. prepared. packed. labeled, held and/or distributed in accordance

II with cGMP. 21 C.F.R. Part Ill. Defendants shall reimburse FDA for supervising

12 the destruction at the rates set forth in paragraph 12. Defendants shall not dispose

13 of any dietary supplements in a manner contrary to any federal, state, or local laws.

14 9. After Defendants have complied with paragraphs 6(A)-(F) and (11),

IS and FDA has noti fled them pursuant to paragraph 6(1), Defendants shall retain an

lb independent person or persons who shall meet the criteria described in paragraph

17 6(3) to conduct audit inspections of their dietary supplement manufacturing

18 operations (hereinafter, the “Auditor”) at least once every six (6) months, for a

19 period of one (1) year, and not less than once every’ twelve (12) months for a

20 period of four (4) years thereafter, for a total of five (5) years of auditing. If

2l Defendants choose, the Auditor may be the same person or persons retained as the

22 Expert in paragraph 6(B).

23 A. At the conclusion of each audit inspection, the Auditor shall

24 prepare a detailed written report (“audit report”) analyzing whether

25 Defendants are in compliance with this Decree, the Act, and its

26 implementing regulations and identifying any deviations (“audit report

27 observations’) .As part of every audit report, except the first audit report,

7



Ca 2:14-cv-04231-QDW-pJW Document 10 Flied 06/20/14 Page 7 of 15 Page ID #:45

the Auditor shall assess the adequacy of corrective actions taken by

2 Defendants to correct all previous audit report observations. The audit

3 reporis shall be delivered contemporaneously to Defendants and FDA by

4 courier service or overnight delivery service, no later than ten (10) business

5 days after the date the audit inspection(s) is completed. In addition,

6 Defendants shall maintain the audit reports in separate files at their facility

and shall promptly make the audit reports available to FDA upon request.

8 B. Wan audit report contains any observations indicating that

9 Defendants are not in compliance with this Decree, the Act, and/or its

10 implementing regulations. Defendants shall, within fifteen (15) calendar

1 days after receiving the audit report. correct those observations, unless FDA

12 notifies Defendants that a shorter time period is necessary. If, after

13 receiving the audit report, Defendants believe that a correction of the

14 deviations will take longer than fifteen (15) calendar days, Defendants shall.

15 within five (5) calendar clays after receiving the audit report, submit to FDA

16 in writing a proposed schedule for completing corrections (“correction

17 schedule”). The correction schedule must be reviewed and approved by

18 FDA in writing prior to implementation by Defendants. In no circumstance

19 shall FDA’s silence be construed as a substitute for written approval.

20 Defindants shall complete a]) corrections nccordin2 to the approved

21 correction schedule. Within thirty (30) calendar days after Defendants

22 receive an audit report, unless FDA notifies Defendants that a shorter time

23 period is necessary’, or within the time flame provided in a correction

24 schedule approved by FDA, the Auditor shall review the actions taken by

25 Defendants to correct the audit report observations. Within live (5) business

26 days after beginning that review, the Auditor shall report in writing to FDA

27 whether each of the audit report observations has been corrected and, if not,

S
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which audit report observations remain uncorrected. If such report identifies

2 one or more objectionable conditions that has not been corrected, FDA may,

3 in its discretion, require tip to five (5) additional years of annual audits.

4 10. Representatives of FDA shall be permitted, without prior notice and

5 us and when FDA deems necessary, to make inspections of Defendants’

6 operations. and without prior notice, to take any other measures necessary to

7 monitor and ensure continuous compliance with the terms of this Decree, the Act.

8 and all applicable regulations. During such inspections, FDA representatives shall

9 be pen itted: immediate access to Defendants’ places of business including, but

10 not limited to, all buildings, equipment, finished and unfinished materials and

1! products, containers, labeling, and other material therein; to take photographs and

12 [flake video recordings; to take samples of Defendants’ finished and unfinished

13 materials and products, containers, labeling, packaging material, and other

l4 material; and to examine and copy all records relating to the receiving,

IS manufacturing, preparing, processing, packina. labeling, holding, and distribution

6 of any and all of Defendants’ products, including components. The inspections

17 F shall be permined upon presentation of a copy of this Decree and appropriate

18 credentials. The inspection authority granted by this Decree is separate from, and

19 in addition to. the authority to make inspections under the Act. 21 U.S.C. § 374.

20 11. Defendants shall promptly provide any information or records to FDA

21 upon request regarding the receiving, manut ctunng, preparing, processing,

22 packmg, labeling, holding, and distribution of dietary’ supplements.

23 12. Defendants shall reimburse FDA for the costs of all FDA inspection,

24 investigations, supervision, analyses, examinations, sampling. testing, reviews, and

25 document preparation that FDA deems necessary to evaluate Defendants’

26 compliance with any part of this Decree. The costs of such activities shall be

27 borne by Defendants at the prevailing rates in ciTect at the time the costs are

9
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1 incurred, and Defendants shall make payment in full to FDA within thirty (30)

2 calendar days of receiving written notification from FDA of the costs. As of the

3 date this Decree is signed by the parties, these rates are: S88.45 per hour and

4 fraction thereof per representative for inspection or investigative work; $106.03 per

5 hour and fraction thereof per representative for analytical or review work: S0.565

6 per mile for travel expenses by automobile; government rate or the equivalent for

7 travel by air or other means; and the published government per diem rate or the

8 equivalent for the areas in which the inspections are performed per-day, per-

9 representative for subsistence expenses. In the event that the standard rates

10 applicable to FDA supervision oCcourt-ordered compliance are modified, these

II rates shall be increased or decreased without further Order of the Court.

12 13. Within then (10) calendar days after entry of this Decree, Defendants

13 shall post a copy of this Decree, in at least one language in which each GM

14 NIanulacluntig. Inc. employee is fluent, in a conspicuous location in a common

15 area at the facility and at any other location(s) at which Defendants manufacture.

16 prepare, process, pack, label, hold, andior distribute dietary’ supplements, and shall

17 ensure that the Decree remains posted at each location for as long as the Decree

18 remains in effect. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after entry of this Decree,

19 Defendants shall provide to FDA an affidavit. from a person with persona]

20 knowledge of the facts stated therein, stating the fact and manner ofDefendants

21 compliance with this paragraph.

22 14. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after entry of this Decree,

23 Detèndants shall provide a copy of the Decree, by personal service or certified

21 mail (restricted delivery, return receipt requested). to each and all of Defendants’

25 directors, officers, agents, employees, representatives, attorney’s, successors,

26 assigns, parties for whom Defendants contractually manufacture dietary

27 supplements and to whom Defendants have shipped dietary supplements at any

10
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time since February 13, 2012, and any and all persons or entities in active concert

2 or participation with any of them (collectively referred to as “Associated

3 Persons”). Within thirty (30) calendar days after entry of this Decree, Defendants

4 shall provide to FDA an affidavit, from a person with personal knowledge of the

5 lacts stated therein, stating the thct and manner of Defendants’ compliance with

6 this paragraph and identifying the names, addresses, and positions of all persons

7 who received a copy of this Decree pursuant to this paragraph.

8 15. In the event that any Defendant becomes associated with any

9 additional Associatcd Person(s) at any time after entry of this Decree, Defendants

10 immediately shall provide a copy of this Decree, by personal service or certified

I I mail (resiricted de]iver, return receipt requested) to such Associated Person(s).

12 Within ten (10) calendar dan’s of each time that an’ Defendant becomes associated

13 with any additional Associated Person, Defendants shall provide to FDA an

14 affidavit, from a person with personal knowledge of the facts stated therein, stating

15 the (hot and manner of Defendants’ compliance with this paragraph, identifyin the

16 names, addresses, and Positions of all Associated Persons who received a copy of

17 this Decree pursuant to this paragraph, and attaching a copy of the executed

18 certified mail return receipts. Within ten (10) calendar days of receiving a request

19 from FDA for any information or documentation that FDA deems necessary to

20 evaluate Defendants’ compliance with this paragraph. Defendants shall provide

21 such information or documentation to FDA.

22 16. Defendants shall notify FDA, in writing, at least fifteen (15) calendar

23 days before any change in ownership, character, or name of their business,

24 including reorganization, relocation, dissolution, bankruptcy, assignment, sale

25 resulting in the emergence of a successor business or corporation. the creation or

26 dissolution of subsidiaries, or any other change in the corporate structure or

27 identity of GM Manufacturing. Inc.. or any of their parents or subsidiaries, or the

11
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I sale or assignment of any business assets, such as buildings, equipment. or

2 inventoiy. that may affect obligations arising out of this Decree. Defendants shall

3 provide a copy of this Decree to any prospective successor or assign at least ten

4 (10) calendar clays prior to any sale or assignment. Defendants shall furnish FDA

5 an affidavit of compliance with this paragraph no later than ten (10) calendar days

6 prior to such assignment or change in ownership.

7 17. If, at any time after entry of this Decree, FDA determines, based on

8 the results of an inspection, the analysis of a sample(s). a report or data prepared or

9 submitted by Defendants, the Expert. the Auditor, or any other information, that, at

10 the facility or any other locations at which Defendants, now or in the future,

11 directly or indirectly, manufacture, prepare, process, pack, label, hold, and/or

12 distribute dietary supplements. Defendants have failed to comply with any

13 provision of this Decree, have violated the Act or applicable regulations, or that

11 addiiional corrective actions are necessary to achieve compliance with this Decree,

15 the Act. and,or applicable regulations, FDA may. as and when it deems necessary,

16 order Defendants in writing to take appropriate action, including, but not limited

17 to, ordering Defendants immediately to take one or more of the following actions:

18 A. Cease manutheturing, preparing, processing, packing, labeling,

19 holding and/or distributing any or all dietary’ supplement(s);

20 B. Recall, at Defendants’ own expense, any dietary supplement

21 that is adulterated, misbranded, or otherwise iii violation of this Decree, the

22 Act, and/or its implementing regulations;

23 C. Revise, modify, or expand any reports, plans, procedures,

24 and/or other records prepared pursuant to this Decree;

25 D. Submit additional reports or information to FDA;

26 E. Institute or reimplement any of the requirements set forth in this

27 Decree;

12
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1 F. Issue a safety alert; anWor

2 G. Take any other corrective actions as FDA, in its discretion,

3 deems necessary to protect the pubhc health and/or to bring Defendants into

4 compliance with this Decree, the Act, andlor its implementing regulations.

5 18. The provisions of this paragraph shall be separate and apart from, and

6 in addition to. all other remedies available to FDA. Defendants shall pay all cost

7 of recalls and other corrective actions, including the costs of FDA’s inspections,

$ investigations, supervision, analyses, examinations, sampling, testing, reviews,

9 document preparation. travel, and subsistence expenses to implement and monitor

10 recalls and other corrective actions, at the rates specified in paragraph 12.

11 19. Upon receipt of any order issued by FDA pursuant to paragraph 17,

12 Defendants shall immediately and fully comply with the terms of the order. Any

13 cessation of operations or other actions described in paragraph 17 shall continue

14 until Defendants receive written notification from FDA that Defendants appear to

IS be in compliance with this Decree. the Act, and its implementing regulations, and

16 that Defendants may resume operations.

17 20. if any Defendant fails to comply with any of the provisions of this

18 Dccree. the Act, and/or applicable regulations, then Defendants shall pay to the

19 United States of America the sum of five thousand dollars (55,000) in liquidated

20 damages for each day such violation continues and an additional sum of five

21 thousand dollars (55,000) in liquidated damages for each violation of this Decree,

22 the Act, and/or applicable regulations, and an additional sum equal to twice the

23 retail value of each shipment of adulterated dietary supplements in liquidated

damages for each such unlawful shipment. Defendants understand and agree that

25 the liquidated damages specified in this paragraph are not punitive in nature and

26 their imposition does not in any way limit the ability of the United States to seek,

27 or the Court to impose, additional civil or criminal penalties to be paid by

13
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I Defendants, or remedies based on conduct that may also be the basis for payment

2 of liquidated damages pursuant to this paragraph.

3 21. Should the United States bring, and prevail in, a contempt action to

4 enforce the terms of this Decree. Defendants shall, in addition to oilier remedies.

5 reimburse the United States for its attorneys’ fees (including overhead), travel

6 expenses incurred by attorneys and witnesses, expert witness fees, administrative

7 and court costs, investigation and analytical expenses incurred in bringing the

8 contempt action, and any other costs or fees related to the contempt proceedings.

9 22. All decisions specified in this Decree shall be vested in the discretion

10 of the FDA. FDA’s decisions shall be final and, to the extent these decisions are

11 subject to review, shall be reviewed by the Court under the arbitrary and capricious

12 standard set forth in 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). Review by the Court of any FDA

13 decision rendered pursuant to this Decree shall be based exclusively on the written

14 record before FDA at the time the decision was made. No discovery shall be taken

15 by either pan)’.

16 1 23. All notifleations, correspondence, and communications to FDA

I? required by the terms of this Decree shall be addressed to the Director, FDA Los

1$ Angeles District Office, 19701 Fairchild, Irvine, CA 92612-2506, and shall

19 reference this civil action by case name and civil action number,

20 24. This Court retains jurisdiction over this action and the parties thereto

21 for the purpose of enforcing and modifying this Decree and for the purpose of

22 granting such additional relief as may be necessary or appropriate.

23

24 SO ORDERED:

____

25 UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

26 Dated this 20 day of June , 2014

27

14
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1 Plaintiff, the United States of America, by André Birotte Jr., United States

2 Attorney for the Central District of California, respectfully represents to this

3 1-lonorable Court as follows:

4 INTRODUCTION

5 1. This action is brought by the United States of America pursuant to the

6 Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (the “Act”), 21 U.S.C. § 332(a), and the

7 equitable authority of this Court, to enjoin and restrain GM Manufacturing, Inc.

8 (“GMM”). a corporation, and Mao L. Yang, Mary Chen. and David Yang,

9 individuals (collectively, “Defendants”), from violating:

10 A. 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(a), by introducing or delivering for

11 introduction into interstate commerce, and causing the introduction or delivery for

12 introduction into interstate commerce, articles of food (dietary supplements, as

13 delined at 21 U.S.C. § 321(11)) that are adulterated within the meaning of

14 21 U.S.C. § 342(g)(1); and

15 B. 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing articles of food (dietary

16 supplements. as defined at 21 U.S.C. § 321(11)) to become adulterated within the

17 meaning of2 I U.S.C. § 342(g)(1). while such articles are held for sale after

18 shipment of one or more of their components in interstate commerce.

19 JURISDICTION AND VENUE

20 2. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 332(a) and

21 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 1337, and 1345, and personal jurisdiction over all parties.

22 3. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 139 1(b) &

23 (c).

24 DEFENDANTS

25 4. Defendant GM Manufacturing. Inc. (“GMM”) is a California

26 corporation with its principal place of business at 1500 W 135th St, Gardena,

27 California (the “Facility”), within the jurisdiction of this Court.
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5. Defendant Mao L. Yang is GMM’s owner and Chief Executive

2 Officer. Mao Yang oversees day-to-day operations at the firm and has ultimate

3 responsibility for GMM’s operations, including receipt of materials, sales, training,

4 manufacturing, and distribution. Mr. Yang performs his duties at the Facility,

5 within the jurisdiction of this Court.

6 6. Defendant Mary Chen is GMM’s President. Ms. Chen is responsible

7 for purchasing supplies and materials for the firm and is a member of the firm’s

8 quality control unit. Ms. Chen reports directly to Mao Yang and performs her

9 duties at the Facility, within the jurisdiction of this Court.

10 7. Defendant David Yang is an employee of GMM. David Yang is

II responsible for preparing the firm’s bottling and labeling equipment for

12 production, filing production records, and maintaining equipment, and is a member

13 of the firm’s quality control unit. 1-le reports directly to Mao Yang and performs

14 his duties at the Facility, within the jurisdiction of this Court.

15 8. Defendants have been, and are now engaged in, manufacturing,

16 preparing, labeling, packing, holding, and distributing “dietary’ supplements”

17 within the meaning of2I U.S.C. § 321(D).

1 8 9. Defendants regularly manufacture dietan’ supplements using

19 components that they receive from outside California. Defendants also introduce

20 or deliver for introduction into interstate commerce finished dietary supplements.

21 DEFENDANTS ADULTERATE THEIR DIETARY SUPPLEMENTS

22 10. The United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) inspected

23 Defendants’ Facility between February 19 and March 22, 2013. This inspection

24 established that the dietary supplements Defendants manufacture, prepare, pack,

25 label, hold, and distribute are adulterated within the meaning of2l U.S.C.

26 § 342(a)(1), in that they have been prepared, packed, and held under conditions

27
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I that do not comply with the current good manufacturing practice regulations for

2 dietary supplements (“cOMP”) setforth at 21 C.F.R. Part 111.

3 11. Manufacturing in compliance with cGMP means that the

4 I manufacturer incorporates a set of controls in the design and production processes

5 to ensure a consistent quality finished product. Dietary supplements not prepared,

6 packed, or held in conformance with cGMP are deemed adulterated, 21 U.s.c.

7 §342(g)(1).

8 12. During the February—March 2013 inspection, FDA investigators

9 documented numerous deviations from cGMP, including, but not limited to:

10 A. Defendants failed to conduct at least one appropriate test to

11 verift the identity ofa dietary ingredient, as required by 21 c.F.R. § 11 1.75(a)(1);

12 B. Defendants failed to confirm the identity of components and to

13 determine whether other component specifications are met, as required by

14 21 c.F.R. § 11 I.75(a)(2):

is c. Defendants failed to veri& that finished dietary supplements

16 met product specifications for identity, purity, strength, composition, and for limits

17 on those types of contamination that may adulterate or that may lead to

18 adulteration of the finished batch of the dietary supplement, as required by

19 21 c.F.R. § 111.75(c);

20 D. Defendants failed to prepare and follow a master manufacturing

21 record for each unique formulation and batch size that includes identity

22 specifications for the points, steps, or stages in the manufacturing process where

23 control is necessary to ensure the quality of the dietary supplement, as required by

24 21 c.F.R. § 111.205(b)(1) and 111.210(h)(1);

25 E. Defendants failed to prepare a batch production record

26 including all necessan’ elements, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.255 and

27 111.260;
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F. Defendants failed to maintain, clean, and sanitize, as necessary,

2 equipment, utensils, and other contact surfaces used to manufacture, package,

3 label, or hold components or dietary supplements, as required by 21 C.F.R.

4 § 111.27(d);

5 0. Defendants failed to establish and follow written procedures

6 that specify the responsibilities of the quality control operations, as required by

7 21 C.F.R. 111.103; and

8 II. Defendants failed to collect and hold reserve samples of

9 packaged and labeled dietary supplements that have been distributed, as required

10 by 21 C.F.R. § 111.83(a).

II 13. The cGMP deviations documented during FDA’s February—March

12 2013 inspection establish that Defcndants’ dietary supplements are adulterated

13 within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1).

14 14. Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(a) by introducing or delivering for

IS introduction into interstate commerce, and causing the introduction or delivery for

16 introduction into interstate commerce, articles of food (dietarv supplements) that

17 are adulterated within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1).

18 15. Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(k) by causing articles of food

19 (dietary supplements) to become adulterated within the meaning of2l U.S.C.

20 § 342(g)(l), while such articles arc held for sale after shipment of one or more of

21 their components in interstate commerce.

22 DEFENDANTS’ HISTORY OF VIOLATIONS

23 16. FDA previously inspected Defendants’ Facility between January23

24 and February 13, 2012. During the inspection, FDA observed significant

25 violations of the Act and cGMP regulations, including violations the same as or

26 similar to those observed during FDA’s February—March 2013 inspection.

27
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1 17. At the conclusion of the January—February 2012 inspection, the FDA

2 investigator issued to Defendant Mao Yang a List of Inspectional Observations

3 (“Form FDA 483”) detailing Defendants’ numerous violations of the Act and

4 cGMP regulations, and discussed the documented observations with him.

5 18. On July 23, 2012, FDA issued a warning letter to Defendants

6 informing them that the significant cGMP deviations documented by FDA during

7 the January—February 2012 inspection rendered Defendants’ dietary supplements

8 adulterated under the Act. The Warning Letter further cautioned that failure to

9 promptly correct the deviations, and prevent ifiture ones, could lead to additional

10 regulatory action, including an injunction.

II 19. Based on their repeated course of conduct, Defendants, unless

12 restrained by order of this Court, will continue to violate 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(a) & (k).

13 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court:

14 1. Order that Defendants, and each and all of their directors, officers,

15 agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors, assigns, and any and all

16 persons or entities in active concert or participation with any of them, cease

17 manufacturing, preparing, processing, packing, labeling, holding, and/or

18 distributing dietary’ supplements at or from the Facility or at or from any other

19 location(s) at which Defendants manufacture, prepare, process, pack, label, hold,

20 and/or distribute dietary’ supplements, now or in the future, unless and until

21 Defendants bring their manufacturing, preparing, processing, packing, labeling,

22 holding, and/or distributing operations into compliance with the Act and cOMP;

23 II. Order that Defendants, and each and all of their directors, officers,

24 agents, representatives, employees, altomeys. successors, assigns, and any and all

25 persons or entities in active concert or participation with any of them, be

26 permanently restrained and enjoined under 21 U.S.C. § 332(a), from directly or

27 , indirectly doing or causing to be done any of the following acts:
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A. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 331(a), by introducing or delivering for

2 introdLiction into interstate commerce, and causing the introduction or delivery for

3 introduction into interstate commerce, dietary supplements that are adulterated

4 within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1); and

5 B. Violating 21 U.S.C. § 33 1(k), by causing dietary supplements

6 to become adulterated within the meaning of2l U.S.C. § 342(g)(1), while such

7 articles are held for sale after shipment of one or more of their components in

8 interstate commerce;

9 III. Order that FDA be authorized pursuant to this injunction to inspect

10 Defendants’ places of business and all records relating to the manufacturing,

11 preparing, processing, packing, labeling, holding, and distribution of all of

12 Defendants’ dietary supplements to ensure continuing compliance with the terms

13 of the injunction, with the costs of such inspections to be borne by Defendants at

14 the rates prevailing at the time the inspections are accomplished; and

15 IV. Order that Plaintiff be awarded costs incurred in pursuing this action,

16 including the costs of investigation to date, and such other equitable relief as the

17 Cour deems just and proper.

12 Dated this 2 day of June, 2014.

19

20 RespectfuLly Submitted,

21 STUART F. DELERY
Assistant Attorney General

22 MICHAEL S. BLUME
Director

-) JEFFREY STEGER

24 Assistant Director

25 /s/ Lauren E. Fascea
LAUREN E. FASCETT

26 Trial Attorney

77 Consumer Protection Branch
— U.S. Department of Justice
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